IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

WILLIAM VALRIO, a/k/a RICHARD BICKERS)	
Petitioner,)	S.CT. CASE NO. 88,845
vs.	3	DCA CASE NO. 95-2816
STATE OF FLORIDA,)	
Respondent.))	

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JAMES B. GIBSON PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

ANDREA J. SURETTE ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER FLORIDA BAR NO. 0064807 112 Orange Ave., Suite A Daytona Beach, FL 32114 (904) 252-3367

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The state charged Petitioner, William Valrio, with felony driving under the influence, an offense which occurred in 1992. Petitioner pleaded nolo contendere to the charge, and a sentencing hearing was held more than three years after the offense was committed. After hearing evidence in mitigation at the sentencing hearing, the trial court found that Petitioner no longer posed a threat to the general population of Florida. Based upon this finding, the trial court decided to depart downward from the sentencing guidelines. The court orally announced the reasons for the departure and placed Petitioner on community control for one year, followed by four years of probation.

The state appealed the departure sentence, arguing that the trial court failed to file contemporaneous written reasons. On August 9, 1996, the Fifth District Court of Appeal reversed Petitioner's sentence and remanded to the trial court for resentencing within the guidelines. On August 15, 1996, Petitioner timely filed a notice to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This Court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review Petitioner's case. In its opinion the Fifth District Court of Appeal cites a case which **is** pending for review by this Court on a certified question. This Court has jurisdiction in accordance with <u>Jollie v. State</u>, 405 So. 2d **418** (Fla. 1981) and pursuant to Article V, Section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution.

ARGUMENT

THE DISTRICT COURT'S DECISION IN
THIS CAUSE CITES <u>STATE v. PEASE</u>,
669 So. 2d **314** (Fla. 1st **DCA 1996**), WHEREIN
THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF **APPEAL**CERTIFIED TO THIS HONORABLE COURT **A** OTJESTION OF GREAT PUBLIC IMPORTANCE.

The state appealed Petitioner's downward departure sentence on the grounds that the trial court failed to file contemporaneous written reasons for the departure. The Fifth District Court of Appeal reversed and remanded for resentencing within the guidelines. The First District Court of Appeal reached the same decision in State v. Pease, 669 So. 2d 314 (Fla. 1st DCA 1996), where the trial court also failed to enter contemporaneous written reasons supporting a downward departure sentence. However, the First District Court of Appeal in Pease certified to this Honorable Court the following question as a matter of great public importance:

May a downward departure sentence be affirmed where the trial court orally pronounced valid reasons for departure at the time of sentencing, but inadvertently failed to enter Contemporaneous written reasons'?

In Petitioner's case the Fifth District Court of Appeal cites <u>Pease</u> in its opinion, but declines to certify the same question.

Pease v. State is pending for review by this Court in Case Number 87,571. Consistent with Jollie v. State, 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981), this Court should accept jurisdiction over Petitioner's case as well. In Jollie this Honorable Court held that a *per curiam* affirmance that relies upon a decision pending for review in this Court constitutes prima facie express conflict. Under such circumstances, this Court may exercise jurisdiction to review the *per curiam*

decision to ensure that the petitioner is not denied relief in the event the Court decides the pending decision favorably. Similarly, if this Court answers the certified question in Pease affirmatively, Petitioner will be denied the benefit of that decision should this Court **deny** jurisdiction over his case. Because the Fifth District Court of Appeal reached the same conclusion in Petitioner's case as the First District did in Pease, and because the Fifth District cited Pease in its opinion, but did not certify the same question pending for review, this Honorable Court has jurisdiction under Article V, Section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution. Cf. Iollie.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing arguments and authorities, Petitioner respectfully requests this Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction and grant review of the Fifth District Court of Appeal's decision in this cause.