IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA $\widetilde{\mu}$

WILLIAM VALRIO, a.k.a. RICHARD VICKERS,

Petitioner,

v.

Case No. 88,845

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, FIFTH DISTRICT AND THE FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

Robert A. Butterworth Attorney General

Belle B. Turner
Assistant Attorney General
FL Bar # 397024
444 Seabreeze Blvd. 5th Floor
Daytona Beach, FL 32118
(904) 238-4990

Counsel for Respondent

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent generally agrees with the Petitioner's version of the case and facts with the following additions:

On August 22, 1992, Valrio was arrested for driving under the influence of alcohol after a collision with another vehicle. (R 22) As this was his fourth DUI, he was charged with a third degree felony. (R 30)

Valrio entered into a plea agreement wherein he agreed to be adjudicated guilty, pay costs, and receive a guidelines sentence.

(R 38) The recommended guidelines sanction was five and one half to seven years incarceration, with a permitted range of four and one half to nine years of incarceration. (R 62)

On October 20, 1995, Valrio appeared for sentencing. The trial court announced that it intended to impose a downward departure sentence of one year of community control followed by four years of probation. (R 42-44) Although oral reasons were given, no written reasons were filed. The State timely filed a notice of appeal on October 27, 1995. (R 65)

After the initial brief was filed, Petitioner moved to supplement the record on appeal on January 17, 1996. The district court granted the Appellant until February 7 to supplement the record. On February 9, 1996, the trial court signed an order "nunc

pro tunc, October 20, 1995" purporting to justify the departure sentence imposed in this case. In the answer brief, Valrio acknowledged the controlling authorities relied upon by the State, including Pope v. State, 561 So. 2d 554 (Fla. 1990), State v. Colbert, 660 So. 2d 701 (Fla. 1995), and Jones v. State, 639 So. 2d 28 (Fla. 1994).

After oral argument, the District Court entered its decision in this case, finding these cases to be controlling, and reversed and remanded for imposition of a sentence within the guidelines. The court found "no basis" to certify the same question presently before this Court in a case upon which Petitioner now relies for jurisdiction.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The decision in this case does not expressly or directly conflict with any other decision and so this Court should not exercise jurisdiction in this case. Although the decision does cite to Pease.infra, presently pending before this Court, the fifth district found "no basis" to conclude that Pease was applicable to this case. Where, as here, a case is cited, but distinguished, the rule of Jollie, infra, does not apply.

POINT ONE

THERE S NO EXPRESS OR D RECT CONFL CT BETWEEN THE DECISION IN THIS CASE AND ANY OTHER DECISION SUCH THAT THIS COURT SHOULD EXERCISE JURISDICTION

Petitioner contends that the fact that the district court's decision cited to a case presently pending before this Court, finding it to be distinguishable from the instant case, requires this Court to exercise its jurisdiction. See, Jollie v. State, 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981). The State of Florida contends that review of this decision establishes that no conflict exists, and so this Court should decline to exercise jurisdiction.

Under Article V, Section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution, and Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), this Court may review any decision of a district court of appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court or of the Supreme Court on the same question of law. In Reaves v. State, 485 So. 2d 829 (Fla. 1986), this Court held that the only facts relevant to the decision to accept or reject petitions for review are those facts contained within the four courners of the majority decision; neither the dissenting opinion nor the record may be used to establish jurisdiction. Moreover,

jurisdiction depends upon whether the conflict between decisions is express and direct and not whether the conflict is inherent or implied. Dept. Of HRS v. Nat'l Adoption Counseling Service. Inc., 498 So. 2d 888 (Fla. 1986). The district courts are ordinarily the court of final appellate jurisdiction, and this Court's review on the basis of conflict of decisions is limited.

Viewed in this light, there is no basis to exercise jurisdiction in this case. Petitioner below conceded that pursuant to <u>Jones v. State</u>, 639 So. 2d 28 (Fla. 1994), and <u>Pope v. State</u>, 561 So. 2d 554 (Fla. 1990), the failure of the lower court to issue contemporaneous written reasons for a below guidelines departure sentence required a reversal and remand for resentencing within the guidelines. However, Petitioner urged the district court to certify to the Florida Supreme Court the same question certified by the First District Court of Appeal in the case of <u>State v. Pease</u>, 669 So. 2d 314 (Fla. 1st DCA 1996). In response to this request, the district court held, "...we can find no basis to do so." <u>State v. Valrio</u>, 21 Fla. L. Weekly D1805 (Fla. 5th DCA August 9, 1996).

The State argued below that this case was distinguishable from Pease because in this case, none of the reasons orally pronounced are valid reasons for departure which are supported by the record. In Pease, all parties agreed that the orally pronounced reasons

would have been valid had they been contemporaneously written. The district court was correct in concluding that Petitioner can find no solace in the <u>Pease</u> decision, whatever its outcome. Where a district court cites to, but distinguishes, a case pending before this Court, <u>Jollie</u>, <u>supra</u>, is inapplicable. <u>Jollie</u> only applies where the district court finds the pending case to be controlling.

It is the essense of fairness that a rule applies equally harshly to both sides; if contemporaneous written reasons are not provided, a guidelines sentence must be imposed on remand. That is exactly what Petitioner agreed to when the plea was entered. There is no reason for this Court to accept review of this case.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing argument and authority, the State respectfully requests this Honorable Court to decline to accept jurisdiction $i\,n$ this case.